_"\

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reportl ng Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations
CSW-44 on-lineat http://www.iisd.ca/4wcw/csw44/

Vol. 14 No. 31

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Tuesday, 14 March 2000

CSW-44 HIGHLIGHTS:
SATURDAY - MONDAY, 11-13 MARCH 2000

On Saturday, delegates met in Working Group Il inthe morning to
continue negotiation of Section 1V on actionsand initiatives. The
contact group on Section | met in the afternoon. On Monday, Working
Group | convened in the morning to discuss Section |1 of the outcome
document on achievements and obstacles and Working Group I
convened to continue discussion of Section IV (E/CN.6/2000/L.1/
Rev.1). The contact group on Section | met briefly during thelunch
break.

WORKING GROUP |

On Monday, del egates resumed discussion on achievements and
obstaclesin the implementation of the 12 critical areas of the PFA and
negotiated text contained in: paragraph 6 on achievementsinthe area
of education and training for women; paragraph 7 and 7 bison obsta-
clesto education and training; and paragraph 8 on achievementsin the
areaof women and health.

On paragraph 6, JUSCANZ proposed areference to women’'s and
girls education. The G-77/CHINA requested, and JUSCANZ
opposed, deletion of the reference to sufficient political commitment.
The G-77/CHINA proposed deletion of referenceto culturally appro-
priate education, retention of reference to disadvantaged and margin-
alized groups, and addition of areferenceto removing gender bias
fromtraining aswell as education. JUSCANZ additionally proposed
that reference be madeto all fields of study. Delegates agreed and the
paragraph was adopted.

On paragraph 7, the HOLY SEE proposed reference to economic,
social and cultural barriersto girls' education. Most delegates agreed
on aJUSCANZ proposal noting both low enrollment and retention
rates. The G-77/CHINA preferred that the sentence remain bracketed.
JUSCANZ suggested referenceto effortsto strengthen literacy, and
theHOLY SEE preferred referenceto effortsto eradicateilliteracy.
The G-77/CHINA suggested, and del egates supported, using both
formulations. Onincreasing accessto al level sand types of education,
JUSCANZ proposed language on pregnant adol escents and young
mothers. The HOLY SEE suggested language stating that the remote
location of rural and indigenous communities and inadequate sal aries
and benefits creates obstaclesin attracting and retaining teaching

professionals and can result in lower quality education. The EU
opposed specific reference to indigenous communities and i nadequate
salaries and benefits. The G-77/CHINA opposed referenceto indige-
nous communities but supported reference to inadequate salaries and
benefits. Language on inadequate salaries and benefits and remote
communitieswas | eft bracketed.

OnaG-77/Chinaproposal for paragraph 7 bis, JUSCANZ
suggested reference to the application and inappropriate design of
economic reform policies. TheHOLY SEE proposed language on
economic effects aggravating women’sinequality. The entire para-
graph remains bracketed.

On paragraph 8, delegates agreed on text referring to programmes
implemented to create awareness among policy-makers and planners
onthe need for health programmesto cover all aspects of women's
health throughout thelife cycle. The G-77/CHINA, supported by the
HOLY SEE, called for text on programmesto foster awareness of the
positive impacts of breastfeeding and to combat malnutrition of preg-
nant and lactating mothers. The HOLY SEE suggested referenceto the
reproductiverights of women ,asoutlined in the |CPD Report, in orde
toinclude reservations brought forward by countries. MEXICO,
supported by the EU, proposed referring to the prevention of cervical
and uterine cancer and other cancers of the reproductive system.
JUSCANZ called for including referencesto other kinds of cancer,
recognition of women'’srole as primary health care providerswithin
their families, and participation of women as health care workers. The
HOLY SEE preferred reference to the use of family planning instead
of contraceptive methods, and the EU noted that contraception does
not necessarily involve afamily. ALGERIA called for language on
sexual and reproductiverightsto be bracketed. All proposalsremain
bracketed.

WORKING GROUP ||

On Saturday, del egates discussed: paragraph 48 bisrecognizing
cultural diversity and the value of dialogue among civilizationsin
international cooperation to implement the PFA; paragraph 49 on the
importance of political will and commitment in ensuring the adoption
and implementation of comprehensive, holistic and transformative
policiesin areascritical to gender equality; paragraph 50 on anon-
discriminatory and gender-sensitive constitutional and/or legislative

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Tonya Barnes <tmb34@columbia.edu>, Wendy Jackson <wendy@iisd.org>, Violette
Lacloche <violette@iisd.org> and Gretchen Sidhu <gsidhu@igc.org>. The Editor is PamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the M anaging Editor is L angston James "Kimo"
Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFI D) and the European Commission (DG-ENV.) General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 s provided by thethe German Federal
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of
Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the
Government of Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. Specific funding for coverage of the
Beijing +5 process has been provided by The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairsand the United Kingdom DFID. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. || SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca>and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4,
Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercia publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial
publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://
www.iisd.callinkages/. The satellite image was taken above New York ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http:/livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin,
send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Tuesday, 14 March 2000

Vol. 14 No. 31 Page 2

framework to ensure women'’sdejure equality; paragraph 51 on e€limi-
nating violence against women; and paragraph 51 bis on women’s
contribution to the welfare of the family and upbringing of children.

Ontext proposed by agroup of countrieson paragraph 48 bis,
many del egates opposed referencesto empowerment and full realiza-
tion of human rights and fundamental freedoms, full recognition of
cultural diversity, and theinternational community’srecognition of
dialogue as essential to the achievement of UN purposes, and
suggested alternative language on the val uabl e contribution of
dialogue among civilizations toward improved awareness and under-
standing of common values.

On paragraph 49, agroup of countriesintroduced a new formula-
tion referring to mainstreaming a gender perspective to reach gender
equality through the adoption and implementation of comprehensive
and action-oriented policiesin al areas. A regional group proposed
alternative text referring to: women’s equal accessto and control over
economic and financial resources; the partnership of men and women
in democracy and policy-making processes; and the activeinvolve-
ment of menin effortsto achieve the goal's of the PFA. A delegation
suggested reference to encouraging the activeinvolvement of men and
boysin theimplementation of the PFA. A group of countries preferred,
and others conceded to, del eting the reference to democracy. With
these changes as well asareference to the goals of the PFA, the para-
graph was adopted.

On paragraph 50, delegates expressed concern over consistency of
thetext with various national legal systems. Del egates suggested
language referring to anon-discriminatory constitutional and/or legis-
lative framework. The paragraph aso emphasi zes equality and equal
protection before and under the law, together with, inter alia, a
supportive law enforcement system and judiciary will to accelerate
achievement of women’sfull enjoyment of all human rights, funda-
mental freedoms and gender equality. It further recognizesthat appro-
priate regulatory measures and legislative reform processes should
addressglobalization. A group of countries suggested adding language
on ensuring equal accessto and control over economic benefits, rights
and opportunities. In text listing economic issues, agroup of countries
called for adding accessto basic resources such as, inter alia, land and
water. Text wasleft in brackets.

On paragraph 51, delegates could not agree on whether the para-
graph should remain ageneral statement or list formsof violenceand it
remains bracketed.

On paragraph 51 his, one delegation called for adequate recogni-
tion of women's contributionsto social development and equal sharing
of family responsihilities. Other groups underscored the social signifi-
cance of maternity and therole of parentsin the family. One delegate
questioned placement of referencesto family asan addendumto a
paragraph on armed conflict and emergency situations. Text remains
bracketed.

On Monday, del egates discussed: paragraph 53 bison disabled
women and girls; paragraph 54 on monitoring progress through
research, targets and other mechanisms; and paragraph 55 pertaining
to the alocation of resources supporting the realization of gender
equality, development and peace.

Delegates supported placement of paragraph 53 bisin text on
actionsin Section IV, noting the chapeau should remain broad. Dele-
gates agreed to replace “ devel opment” with “society” in areferenceto
specia measures used to mainstream disabled women and girls. The
paragraph remains bracketed.

On paragraph 54, aregional group introduced a compilation text
that refersto, inter alia, disaggregated databy sex and follow-up
mechani smsto assess progress. On areference to taking action at the
national level, aregional group maintained that the wording wastoo
restrictive. The reference remains bracketed.

On paragraph 55, aregional group agreed on referencesto: thefull
realization and achievement of the goals of gender equality; necessary
human, financial, and material resources; and inclusion of support at
al levels. Delegations supported referring to women-specific
programmes and gender mainstreaming. One del egation proposed
retaining the call for increased international cooperation, but another
asked that this phrase remain bracketed for further discussion. The
paragraph remains bracketed.

CONTACT GROUP ON SECTION |

On Saturday, delegates discussed aredraft text of paragraph 2 on
the 12 critical areasfor priority action to achieve the advancement and
empowerment of women.

Ontheinclusion of areferenceto CEDAW, one delegate expressed
concern about drawing aparallel in the same paragraph between the
PFA, apolitical commitment, and CEDAW, alegal obligation. Another
delegate stressed the link between the PFA and CEDAW and the
importance of referring to both in theintroduction. A regional group
agreed to omit thereferenceto CEDAW if areferenceto thefull real-
ization of the human rights of women and girlswasincluded. She
opposed areference to access to productive resources and economic
independence introduced by agroup of countries and suggested
inserting abroader referenceto equal accessto resourcesor placing the
referencein adifferent Section of the outcome document. References
to CEDAW and access to resources remain bracketed.

On Monday, del egates continued discussion of paragraph 2 based
on aredrafted text introduced by aregional group. Thetext includes
referencesto: thefull realization of the human rights of women and
girls; the elimination of all practicesthat discriminate against women;
accessto economic, productive and socia resources and services; and
CEDAW asakey legal instrument for the promotion and protection of
women's human rights. Most del egates supported the new formula-
tion, but one group of countries continued to advocate referenceto
accessto productive resources and economic independence and to
oppose language on CEDAW.

IN THE CORRIDORS

AstheWorking Groups maintain their one-a-day rate for clearing
paragraphs, real progress continuesamong smaller parties of delegates
huddling behind the scenes. The contact group on the Draft Political
Declaration isreputedly “deal-making” on language regarding targets
for ODA, and referencesto CEDAW and follow-up to UN confer-
ences. Rumor hasit that certain countries may be holding out on
CEDAW asalast minute bargaining chip for resources.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

WORKING GROUPS: Working Group | will reconvene at 10:00
am and 3:00 pm in Conference Room 6 to discuss Section I1. Working
Group |1 isexpected to meet at 10:00 am and 3:00 pm in Conference
Room 1 to continue discussion of Section IV.

CONTACT GROUP: The contact group on Section | is expected
to meet at 2:00 pm in Conference Room A.



